I. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

A. The court erred by admitting prejudicial hearsay evidence 

based on the excited utterance exception, thus warranting a new 

trial. 

B. The court erred by prohibiting evidence of prior 

consensual sex between Patricia Harris and Joe Villareal and 

examination of the State's lab expert as to findings regarding Mr. 

Villareal under RCW 9.94.020(3)(a) and ER 404(b). 

C. The court's counting as a strike Mr. Martinez's conviction 

for an offense committed prior to the effective date of the Persistent 

Offender Accountability Act (POAA) violated the ex post facto 

prohibition. 

D. Mr. Martinez's prior California conviction for second 

degree robbery was not comparable to a VVashington conviction for 

second degree robbery and should not have been counted as a 

strike. 

Issues Pertaining to Assignments of Error 

1. Did the court err by admitting prejudicial hearsay 

evidence based on the excited utterance exception, thus warranting 

a new trial? (Assignment of Error A) 



2. Did the court err by prohibiting evidence of prior 

consensual sex between Ms. Harris and Joe Villareal and 

examination of the State's lab expert as to findings regarding Mr. 

Villareal under RCVV 9.94A.O20(3)(a) and ER 404(b)? (Assignment 

of Error 8). 

3. By counting as a strike Mr. Martinez's conviction for a 

California second degree robbery committed prior to the effective 

date of the POAA, did the court violate the ex post: facto 

prohibition? (Assignment of Error C). 

4. Did the court err by determining the conviction for a 

California second degree robbery was  omp parable to a Washington 

conviction for second degree robbery and thus counted as a strike 

for purposes of the POAA? (Assignment of Error D). 

I! .  STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Mr. Maeinez was charged by information with count 1 - 
second degree rape, count 2 - second degree assault, and count 3 

- unlawful imprisonment. (CP 1). The State filed a persistent 

offender notification. (CP 44). In a pretrial motion pertaining to 

RCW 9A.44.020, the rape shield statute, the court barred "the 

admission of, or allusions to any prior consensual sexual activities 



involving the alleged victim Patricia L. Harris and any other person." 

(CP 209; 1/19/12 RP 107-04; 1/25/12 RP 307). 

Ms. Harris and Mr. Martinez had a relationship since 2003 

where they had children together. (1124/12 RP 252, 272; 1/25/12 

RP 401). He had been in prison before the incident on May 14, 

2010, and came back to the Clarkston area two days before. (Id.). 

On May 14, Ms. Harris was having a barbeque at her 

Clarkston house for Mr. Martinez's birthday. (1124112 RP 252). A 

friend, Kevin Holm, was there all day. ( I d ) .  Mr. Martinez showed 

up. (Id. at 253). Mr. Holm took him to get alcohol. (Id. at 296). 

He was fairly intoxicated and upset with her because she had not 

kept in contact with him while he was in jail. (Id. at 253). Mr. 

Martinez felt Ms. Hall had "done him dirty." ( I d )  His anger caused 

her some concern, so she asked Mr. Holm to stay. ( I . ) .  Mr. 

Martinez left, whereupon Mr. Holm did as well. (Id. at 254). 

Mr. Martinez came back, Ms. Harris thought it was her 

friend, Amber Grimm, who was going to stop by. (1124l12 RP 255). 

She saw it was Mr. Marlinez, who pushed his way in to talk about 

things. ( I ) .  He was upset and getting angry. She was crying and 

scared. (id.). He wanted to have sex, but she did not. (Id. at 256). 

Ms. Harris told him she was having her period, but Mr. Martinez 



said he was going to take it and did not want it that way anyway as 

he wanted anal sex. (Id.). 

He took her by the hair and dragged her into the bedroom. 

(1124112 RP 256). She struggled as he ripped her clothes off. (id.). 

She said Mr. Martinez had both hands around her neck. ( 1 )  Ms. 

Harris identified the post to a lip ring that had been ripped out. (Id.). 

She said he raped her anally. (Id. at 257, 277). The phone rang 

and startled Mr. Martinez. (Id.) Someone knocked on the door; it 

was Ms. Grimm. (Id. at 258). 

Wrapped in a blanket, Ms. Harris answered the door. 

(1/24/12 RP 258). She stepped out and had a cigarette with Ms. 

Grimm. (Id. at 260). Mr. Martinez joined them at the door and told 

Ms. Grimm he fucked up. ( I d )  The women came in at one point 

with Mr. Martinez still saying Ms. Harris had done him dirty. (id.). 

With Ms. Grirnm there, he went into the kitchen and grabbed a 

knife. ( I ) .  Ms. Harris told Ms. Grimm he had raped her. ( 1 )  Mr. 

Martinez came back out and threatened to kill himself. (Id. at 261). 

With him at the house, Ms. Harris felt she was not free to leave and 

get away. ( 1 )  Ms. Erimm got a call from Doug Wassmuth and 

Mr. Martinez got on the phone. (Id. at 262). He dressed, grabbed 



his backpack where he put in the knife and some beer, and left. 

(Id, at 263) 

Another friend, Nick Elsoto, arrived and took Ms. Harris to 

St. Joseph's Hospital. (1/24/12 at 263). She told hospital 

personnel she had been raped. ( I d )  Ms. Harris testified she 

asked for care and was "probably" frantic, crying, and scared. (Id. 

at 264). She was shook up while talking to a police officer who 

arrived. (Id.). She talked to a doctor and a rape kit was done hours 

later. (Id. at 265). Ms. Harris thought Mr. Martinez had gone to 

Spokane and then to Los Angeles. (Id. at 269). He regularly kept 

in contact with her during that time following the May 14 incident. 

( I d  On cross examination, Ms. Harris admitted she had 

consensual anal sex with Mr. Martinez the day before, May 13. (Id. 

at 277, 281, 293). 

Over defense objection, Ms. Grimm testified that Ms. Harris 

whispered she had been raped by Mr. Martinez. (1125112 RP 316- 

19). Ms. Grimm kept asking him to leave, but he told her and Ms. 

Harris he was going to keep them hostage and they were not going 

to leave. (Id. at 324). Ms. Grimm felt she and Ms. Harris were not 

free to leave. ( I d )  A friend, Ryan Williams arrived at the house 

after Mr. Martinez ten. (Id. at 325-26). Another friend, Nick, took 



Ms. Harris to the hospital. (Id. at 326). Ms. Grimm did not go and 

instead went to see her boyfriend, Mr. Wassmuth, who was working 

at Lancer Lanes Casino, with Mr. Williams. (Id. at 327). 

Mr. Martinez showed up at Lancer Lanes and talked to Mr. 

Wassmuth. (1124112 RP at 328). He asked him and Mr. Williams 

to take him out back and beat him up for what he did. (id.), 

Nyla Roach was a registered nurse in emergency at St. 

Joseph's Regional Medical Center in Lewiston. (1/25/12 RP 334). 

She testified that Ms. Harris said she was anally raped in her home. 

(Id. at 336, 337). A doctor took the rape kit swabs. (Id. at 338). 

Mr. Wassmuth had been friends with Ms. Harris for 3% 

years and was her roommate. (1125112 RP 343). On May 14, 

2010, he got a text from her that said help me. (Id. at 344). Me 

called, but got no answer so he called Mr. Williams and Ms. Grimm. 

(Id. at 345). Mr. Wassmuth talked to Mr. Martinez, who told him he 

had fucked up and should kill himself. (Id. at 346-47). Mr. 

Wassmuth told him multiple times to go back to the motel and sleep 

it off. (id. at 347). Mr. Witliams and Ms. Grimm came down to 

Lancer Lanes and told him what they had seen and heard. (Id. at 

348). Mr. Martinez then arrived at Lancer Lanes and eventually left 

saying he was going to the river to kill himself. (Id. at 349). Mr. 



Wassmuth called the police and showed them the "help me" text. 

(Id. at 352). Mr. Martinez called him the next day and said he had 

hurt Ms. Hall. (Id. at 353, 355). 

Clarkston Police Sergeant Josh Daniel saw the "help me" 

text from Ms. Harris to Mr. Wassrnuth. (1125/12 at 361). He tried to 

find Mr. Martinez at the Sunset Motel, but he could not locate him. 

(Id. at 368, 371). Mr. Martinez was later arrested in California. (Id. 

at 371). 

Joseph Canas and the pastor from his church picked up Mr. 

Martinez from the prison in Walla Walla. (1125112 RP at 375-76). 

The day after the incident, he met with Mr. Martinez, who told him 

he had got real drunk the night before and had hurt Ms. Hail. (Id. at 

378). 

Clarkston Police Officer Danny Combs saw Ms. Harris at St. 

Joseph's. (1125/12 RP 384, 385). She was distraught. (Id. at 386). 

Clarkston Police Officer Jeremy Foss was dispatched to St. 

Joseph's on May 14, 201 0, for a sex offense call. (112411 2 RP 21 8- 

19). He contacted Ms. Harris, who was upset about something that 

had happened about two hours before. (Id. at 220). The officer 

testified Ms. Harris told him Mr. Martinez had anally raped her. (Id. 



at 230). A warrant was issued for Mr. Martinez and he was 

arrested in California some time later. (Id. at 246). 

Dr. Matthew Lisne, a physician at St. Joseph's, saw Ms. 

Harris on May 14, 2010, regarding a sexual assault. (1/26/12 RP 

458). She said she was raped and penetrated rectally. (Id. at 460). 

He collected swabs from outside and inside the rectal area and 

gave them to the nurse for drying before being given to the police. 

(/d. at 461). 

Dr. Michael Lin, WSP DNA analyst, said Mr. Martinez was a 

potential contributor of DNA From the anal swab extracts. (7/26/12 

RP 474-75). Dr. Lin said the profile matching Mr. Martinez would 

not be expeded to occur more frequently than one in 500 male 

individuals, not a phenomenal number. (ld. at 475-76). Outside the 

presence of the jury upon examination by defense counsel, Dr. Lin 

testified a major profile on the DNA matched that of Joe 

Viilareal.(ld. at 476-77). The defense had no questions for Dr. Lin 

as to the DNA match for Mr. Villareal because of the court's order 

barring any evidence of consensual sexual activities involving Ms. 

Harris and any other person. (id. at 477; CP 209). 

Mr. Martinez testified in his own defense. ('1125112 RP 401). 

He had been in prison for about 20 months before returning to the 



Ciarkston area on May 12, 2010. ( I d )  He got really drunk on May 

14, the day of the barbeque for his birthday. (Id. at 407). Mr. Holm 

had given him a ride to the liquor store. (Id. at 406). Mr. Martinez 

was at Ms. Harris's house on May 12, 13, and 14. (id. at 405). He 

left several times during the day on March 14 and returned around 

8 or 8:30 p.m. (id. at 408). Ms. Harris let him in and they had 

consensual anal sex as it was a preference. (id. at 409). After 

having sex, they had a verbal dispute because Ms. Harris did not 

want to be with him anymore. (Id. at 414-16). She hit him with a 

frying pan. (Id. at 416). They scuffled. ( I d )  He is six-four; Ms. 

Harris is five-four. (id. at 417). When he told people he had fucked 

up, he meant he had hit her. (Id. at 420). He never said she done 

him dirty. (Id. at 427). He did not recall going to Lancer Lanes. (Id. 

at 428). He did not threaten to kill himself. (Id. at 431). 

There were no objections or exceptions to the court's 

instructions to the jury. (1126112 RP 4 8 ,  483). The jury convicted 

Mr. Martinez of second degree rape and unlawful imprisonment and 

found him not guilty of second degree, but convicted him of fourth 

degree assault. (7126112 RP 546-47; CP 249, 250). 

The court sentenced Mr. Martinez to life in prison without the 

possibility of release for the second degree rape and 364 days for 



the fourth degree assault and 60 months for unlawful imprisonment, 

with the latter two terms running concurrently with the life term. 

(CP 325; 3/27/12 RP 78-79). This appeal follows. 

Ill. ARGUMENT 

A. The court erred by admitting prejudicial hearsay 

evidence based on the excited utterance exception, thus warranting 

a new trial, 

Over defense hearsay objections, the court determined the 

first few minutes of Officer Foss's contact with Ms. Harris at St. 

Joseph's when she indicated Mr. Martinez raped her, were 

admissible under the excited utterance exception. (1124112 RP 

228-29). Likewise, the court also found Ms. Harris's statement to 

Amber Grimm that Mr. Martinez had raped her was admissible 

under the exception as well. (1124/12 RP 318). The court erred. 

Hearsay is an out-of-court statement offered to prove the 

truth of the matter asserted. ER 801 (a), (c). Hearsay is 

inadmissible unless there is an exception. ER 802. The hearsay 

rule is designed to keep out unreliable evidence, that is, statements 

made out of court are considered unreliable as they are not subject 

to cross examination or the jury's scrutiny. State v. Young, 160 

Wn.2d 799, 822, 161 P.3d 967 (2007). 



But there are exceptions based on the circumstances when 

they were made that show the reliability of the inherently unreliable 

statements. Young, 160 Wn.2d at 822-23. The excited utterance 

exception in ER 803(a)(2) is one: 

A statement relating to a startling event or condition 
made while the declarant was under the stress of 
excitement caused by the event or condition. 

The reason for it was explained in Stale v. Chapin, 118 Wn.2d 681, 

[Ulnder certain external circumstances of physical 
shock, a stress of nervous excitement may be 
produced which stills the reflective faculties and 
removes their control. The utterance of a person 
in such a state is believed to be a spontaneous 
and sincere response to the actual sensations 
and perceptions already produced by the 
external shock, rather than an expression based 
on reflection or self-interest. 

Here, the startling event or condition was the rape. (4/19/12 

RP 262-67). The touchstone of reliability is that the utterance of a 

person in such a shocked state must have been a spontaneous and 

sincere response to the perceptions produced by the shock. And 

there is a temporal proximity element that must be sufficient lo 

show that the declarant was indeed under this shocked state so as 

to be spontaneous. See State v. Sharp, 80 Wn. App. 457, 909 



P.2d 1333 (1996); Sfate v. Davis, 141 Wn.2d 798, 845, 10 P.3d 977 

(2000) (time between event and statement "sufficiently slight"). 

With respect to Ms. Grimm's testimony, the evidence was 

that Ms. Harris came outside and smoked a cigarette with her, 

conversed intelligently and coherently, and had knowledge of what 

was going on. (1124112 RP 318). Ms. Harris was not in a shocked 

state at all, but was in control. Although the trial court is usually 

accorded deference in its evidentiary decisions, none should be 

when the excited utterance exception is at issue. State v. Brown, 

127 Wn.2d 749, 758, 903 P.2d 459 (1995). There is no inherent 

reliability in Ms. Harris' statement that Mr. Martinez raped her. 

Instead of a spontaneous response, she had time to reflect and 

protect her self-interest in having him out of her life. (CP Ms. 

Harris's statement was not an excited utterance and thus bears no 

indicia of reliability to take it out of the hearsay prohibition. Chapin, 

supra. 

Ms. Harris's statement to Officer Foss was made 1% to 2 

hours after the incident. (1124112 RP 220). She was upset or 

excited, and was rocking. (id. at 223-24). But this was not enough 

even for the trial judge, who allowed the State to ask further 

questions in an attempt to show an excited utterance. ( d ) .  After 



this attempt, the court excused the jury and asked questions of 

Officer Foss himself as the foundation laid by the State was 

insufficient. (Id. at 226). The court then ruled that the first few 

minutes of the officer's colloquy with Ms. Harris clearly fell within 

the excited utterance exception, but the remainder of the interview 

did not. (Id. at 228-29). The ruling, however, makes a distinction 

without a difference because the evidence showed Ms. Harris's 

demeanor was the same throughout. (Id. at 227). She had no 

difficulty communicating or intelligently responding. (Id. at 227-28). 

In these circumstances, there was no "sufficiently slight" attenuation 

between the event and her statement to the officer. Davis, 141 

VVn.2d at 845. Moreover, there was nothing in the record to show a 

change in Ms. Harris's state to justify application of the excited 

utterance exception for the first few minutes of her talk with Officer 

Foss, much less the rest of it. The court erred by allowing Oficer 

Foss to testify Ms. Harris told him Mr. Martinez raped her. 

Its decision was legally incorrect and is not accorded 

deference in any event. Brown, 227 Wn.2d a1 758. Even so, a 

decision based on an incorrect legal analysis or error of law is an 

abuse of discretion. State v. Jobin, 161 Wn.2d 517, 523, 166 P.3d 

1167 (2007). 



An evidentiary error that does not violate the constitution 

requires reversal if, within reasonable probabilities, the outcome of 

the trial would have been materially affected had the error not 

occurred. State v. Hamlet, 133 Wn.2d 314, 327, 944 P.2d 1026 

(1997). Here, the case against Mr. Martinez boiled down to "he 

said-she said." The court's admission of hearsay statements to 

bolster Ms. Harris's credibility was improper and materially affected 

the trial. Combined with the defense's inability to proffer evidence 

of her motive to get Mr. Martinez out of her life, the evidence was 

unduly prejudicial and warrants the granting of a new trial. Id. 

B. The court erred by prohibiting evidence of consensual 

sex between Ms. Harris and Joe Villareal and inquiry of the State's 

lab expert as to findings regarding Mr. Villareal under RCW 

9.94A.O20(3)(a) and ER 404(b)? 

RCW 9.94A.O20(3)(a) provides: 

(3) In any prosecution for the crime of rape . . . 
evidence of the victim's past sexual behavior 
including but not limited to the victim's marital 
behavior, divorce history, or general reputation 
Tor promiscuity, nonchastity, or sexual mores 
common to community standards is not 
admissible if offered to attack the credibility 
of the victim and is admissible on the issue of 
consent only pursuant to the following procedure: 

(a) A written pretrial motion shall be made by 



the defendant to the court and prosecutor stating 
that the defense has an offer of proof of the 
relevancy of evidence of the past sexual behavior 
of the victim proposed to be presented and its 
relevancy on the issue of the consent of the 
victim. 

Mr. Martinez made that pretrial motion and offer of proof. 

(CP 142-45). He asked for an order allowing (1) testimony about 

past consensual sex with Ms. Harris on May 13, 201 0; (2) 

testimony about a sexual encounter with Joe Villareal on May 13 or 

14, 201 0; and (3) examination of the State's lab expert as lo 

findings regarding Joe Villareal. (CP 142). The relevancy of the 

evidence was this: 

Defendant believes that on May 14,2010 after 
consensual sex, they became embroiled in a 
dispute precipitated by the alieged victim's actions, 
and then she in anger or by premeditated planning, 
used such happening to have him falsely arrested 
for rape and second degree assault as well as 
unlawful imprisonment, so she could prevail in the 
dispute and have him incarcerated to remove him 
from her life. Defendant would also admit that he 
may have been somewhat impaired by alcohol and 
drug intoxication, and upon being falsely accused 
of rape and other crimes responded poorly to a 
difficult situation. 

The Defendant asserts that testimony concerning 
the above referenceId] past sexual behavior 
between the alleged victim and Defendant, Robert 
Martinez, Jr., as well as that between alleged victim 
and Joe M. Villareal are both extremely germane 
and relevant to the limited issue of motive of the 



alleged victim to falsely accuse Defendant of the 
crimes set out in the criminal information file[d] 
herein. Furthermore, any exclusion at trial of said 
evidence proposed by Defendant would result in 
denial of substantial justice to the Defendant by 
preventing him as a practical matter from presenting 
his actual defense and defense theories at trial. 
(CP 144-45). 

highly prejudicial to the alleged victim, and barred by RCW 

9A44.020 and ER 404(b), the court ordered: 

The Court bars the admission of, or allusions to 
any prior consensual activities involving the 
alleged victim, Patricia L. Harris is barred by 
application of RCW 9A.44.020, commonly known 
as "the Rape Shield Statute." Further, the Rules 
of Evidence, specifically ER 404(b) prohibit the 
admission [of[ evidence of "other acts" to prove 
the character of a person "in order to show action 
in conformity therewith." Evidence of prior 
consensual sexual activities between the 
Defendant and the alleged victim clearly falls 
within the prohibition of this rule. (CP 208-09). 

Although evidence of prior consensual sex between Mr 

Martinez and Ms. Harris was barred, testimony came in that she did 

have consensual sex with him on May 13,2010. (1124112 RP 277, 

281, 293). Evidence that a major profile on the DNA matched Mr. 

Villareal did not come in. (1126112 RP 476-77). The offer of proof 

with evidence of Ms. Harris's motive for fabricating her accusations 

against Mr. Martinez also did not come in. By prohibiting this 

evidence, the court did not give Mr. Martinez the opportunity to 



present his defense theory as it did not run afoul of RCW 

9.94A.O20(3)(a) or ER 404(b). 

Mr. Martinez sought to admit evidence of Ms. Harris's

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