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

DISCUSSION

A. THE APPELLANT'S PRIOR CALIFORNIA SECOND DEGREE
ROBBERY CONVICTION IS "COMPARABLE'' TO A
WASHINGTON CONVICTION AS A MATTER OF LAW.

Addressing the weakest of the Appellant's arguments first,

CounselfortheAppellant has conceded thatthe "comparability" of the

California Second Degree Robbery (Appellant's Fourth Assignment

of Error) is without merit in the face of State v. Sublett, 176 Wn.2d 58,

292 P.3d 715 QA12). As such, the Respondent would accept the

concession and ask that the Court conclude that the California

conviction is comparable to a Washington conviction for the purposes

of sentencing under the Persistent Offender Accountability Act

(POAA), RCW 9.944.570, as a matter of law.

B. THE PERSISTENT OFFENDER ACCOUNTABILIry ACT IS
CONSTITUTIONALLY SOUND BOTH FACIALLY AND AS
APPLIED TO THE APPELLANT HEREIN.

Having dispensed with the "comparability" challenge, the only

remaining issue regarding sentencing in this case, is the Appellant's

Third Assignment of Error, an invitation for this Court to void

Persistent Offender Accountability Act (POAA), RCW 9.94A.570, on

the basis of the ex post facto clause. While the Appellant may be

technically correct in his assertion that Division Three has not yet

published an opinion upholding the POAA in the face of such a direct
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challenge (BletgtAppeflanl, page 21), theAppellant certainly cannot

demonstrate any contrary or even equivocal holding by Division Three

in any published or unpublished opinion.l Rather, the Appellant

acknowledges that every single Court that has addressed a challenge

to the POAA as violative of ex post facto prohibitions has found no

constitutional infirmity.2 In fact, all such challenges to similar

sentencing provisions in the State of Washington have been denied.

More than one hundred years ago, in State v. Le Pitre, 54 Wash.

166, 103 P. 27 (1909), the Supreme Court concluded that a persistent

offender sentencing provision merely provides an increased

punishment for the last offense and so does not violate the ex posf

facto prohibitions. In 1940 our Supreme Court denied a similar ex

post facto attack on a habitual offender sentencing provision:

Rem. Rev. Stat. $ 2286 (" H abitual Offendef' sente nci n g
provision) sets forth what will constitute being an
habitual criminal. The severer penalty provided by
statute for one who is an habitual criminal is not
imposed for an offense, except the last one (in this
case, burglary in the second degree), upon which the
defendant has been convicted and not yet sentenced.

' lt cannot go unnoticed that Division Three has upheld the POAA on ex
post facto grounds in at least one unpublished opinion interestingly enough,
authored by Judge Kato. Mindful of RCW 2.06.040 and GR 14.1, this
unpublished opinion is not cited herein as a legal precedent.

2 See: State v. Anqehrn, 90 Wn.App. 339, 952 P.2d 195 (Div. l, 1998)
review denied 136 Wn.2d 1017, 966 P.2d 1277, certiorari denied 120 S.Ct. 92,
528 U.S.833, 145 L.Ed.2d 78;Statev. Nordlund, 113Wn.App.171,53 P.3d 520
(Div. ll, 2002) review denied 149 Wn.2d 1005, 70 P.3d 964; Brown v. Mavle, 283
F.3d 1019, 1040 (gth Cir.2002).
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State v. Domanski, 5 Wn.2d 686, 687, 106 P.2d 591, 592 (1940).

The Appellant offers absolutely no legal or logical basis for this Court

to reverse prior precedent and go against the established authority,

because none exists. There is no reason to believe that Division

Three would reject the long established precedent, the well supported

and soundly reasoned analysis, and clear holdings of the Courts on

this issue. As such, the issue is without merit.

C. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR BY EXCLUDING
EVIDENCE OF PRIOR CONSENSUAL SEX BETWEEN THE
VICTIM AND ANOTHER INDIVIDUAL.

The Appellant's Second Assignment of Error, the issue of the

Trial Court's exclusion of evidence of consensual sex between the

victim and someone other than Mr. Martinez, as with his other

arguments, fails on factual and legal bases. First and foremost the

Appellant cannot be allowed to argue that the Trial Court's recognition

of RCW 9.44.0203 (the"Rape Shield Statute") in anyway hindered his

legitimate efforts to advance his defense. Despite the Trial Court's

ruling that ANY references to prior consensual sex acts would not be

permitted (RP at pages 114, 122,283, and 307), the Defense did

present this type of evidence to the jury (RP at pages 277 and 293).

3 The Appellant throughout his brief cites to RCW '9.94A.020." (Brief of
Appellant, pages i, ii, iii, iv , 2, 14, 16, and 1 7). At one point he cites to RCW
'9.94.O20." (/d. at page 1). lt appears that all of these are intended to be citations
to RCW 9.44.020, commonly refered to as the "Rape Shield Statute."
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The Defense was even able to argue this to the jury during his closing

(RP at pages 529 - 530). As the Appellant notes, this evidence was

"highly prejudicialto the alleged victim and barred by [9.aa.020] and

ER 404(b)" and had been barred by the Trial Court. Brief of

Appellant, page 16. lf, as the Appellant asserts herein, evidence of

the victim's sexual activities was offered solely "on the limited issue

of her motive to falsely accuse" the Appellant (Brief of Appellant, page

17), then his argument is without merit in the facts of the case or in

the law.

The rule set forth in RCW 9.44.020 predates the statute and

has been the law in this state for many years:

Whatever the rule in this state may formerly have been
in regard to the right of a defendant in forcible rape
cases to show specific acts of misconduct on the part of
the complaining witness, it is now firmly established that
such acts are not admissible.

State v. Severns. 13 Wn.2d il2, 554, 125 P.2d 659, 664 - 665

(1942). The express language of the statute provides that evidence

of past sexual evidence is inadmissible to prove either credibility or

consent:

Evidence of the victim's past sexual behavior including
but not limited to the victim's marital history, divorce
history, or general reputation for promiscuity,
nonchastity, or sexual mores contrary to community
standards is inadmissible on the issue of credibility and
is inadmissible to prove the victim's consent except as
provided in subsection (3) of this section, but when the
perpetrator and the victim have engaged in sexual
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intercourse with each other in the past, and when the
past behavior is material to the issue of consent,
evidence concerning the past behavior between the
perpetrator and the victim may be admissible on the
issue of consent to the offense.

RCW 9A.44.020(2). In the present case the Appellant's defense

throughout the proceedings below was that the victim consented to

sex with him during the charged incident. He asserted "consent" at

the Suppression hearing (RP pages 98,99, 100, 110, 111, 113), at

triaf (RP pages 223, 277, 284, 308, 409, 414, 432, and 456), and

during closing argument (RP pages 526, 529, and 532). This point

was succinctly and unequivocally captured in the following exchange:

Judge: I understand, or, or perceive that it is the
defendant's case in chief that the
allegations of which the alleged victim
and the State complain was, that it was
consensual.

Defense: Right.

RP page 285. In fact, at one point the Defense went so far as to

plainly state that evidence of prior consensual sex with the Appellant

would "allow him to show to a jury that she probably consented the

second time by the fact that she consented the first time." RP page

113. This is unquestionably contrary to the express language of the

statute and all relevant case law precedence.

Having concluded that the evidence of past consensual sex

would be completely irrelevant and inappropriate to the issue of
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"consent" the next clearly stated bar in the statute is the use of such

evidence to impugn the "credibility" of the victim. As has been noted:

The rape shield lawwas enacted to remedythe practice
of producing evidence of a victim's past sexual conduct
and attempting to show that there was a logical nexus
between chastity and veracity. Thus, the statute guards
against prejudice resulting from promiscuity.

State v. Peterson, 35 Wn.App. 481 , 485486, 667 P.2d 645, 648 (Div.

l, 1983). In the present case the Defense attempted to do just this

under the guise of "motive." The Appellant asserts that the Trial

Court's exclusion of evidence of prior sex acts with another man (not

the Appellant) prevented him from presenting evidence that the victim

had a reason to "fabricate" the rape allegations. Brief of Apoellant,

page 17. What is this tact, if not an attack on the credibility of the

victim? Evidence of the "relationship" between the victim and this

other man - minus specific instances of sexual intercourse - was

presented and Defense was able to accuse the victim of "fabrication"

without the lurid details or prejudicial smear of her character. RP

pages 274 - 275.

As further indication of the utter lack of support for his position,

the Appellant can only muster citation to one case in support of this

particular aspect of this appeal: State v. Hamlet, 133 Wn.2d 314, 944

P.2d 1026 (1997). Brief of Appellant, page 17. Hamlet has nothing

to do with a rape prosecution, application of the Rape Shield, issues
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of motive, credibility, or any other factual similarity to the case here at

bar. The holding in Hamlet is also adverse to the very position

espoused bytheAppellant herein. In Hamletthe Supreme Court held

that although the Trial Court abused its discretion by allowing the

State to introduce evidence that their expert had been first retained by

the Defense, this would not require reversal in the face of all of the

admissible evidence presented at trial. ld. at327 - 328.

In the present case the Appellant has failed to demonstrate

that the Trial Court erred, and even if he could make such a showing,

following the Hamlet Court's reasoning, this Court would have to

agree that reversal is not required in the face of all of the "untainted"

evidence presented at trial.

D. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION BY
ALLOWING THE ADMISSION OF OUT-OF-COURT
STATEMENTS MADE BY THE VICTIM AS "EXCITED
UTTERANCES."

The final area of complaint advanced by the Appellant is the

Trial Court's decision to allow the admission of the victim's statement

to her friend immediately after the rape and her statement to the

police officer at the hospital shortly after the rape. In his First

Assignment of Error the Appellant asserts that the Trial Court erred

when it allowed the introduction of these statements as "excited

utterances." Brief of Appellant, page 10.

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT 11



Moving first to the statement the victim made to her friend, the

Appellant miscasts this as not a "spontaneous response, she had time

to reflect and protect her self-interest in having [the Appellant] out of

her life." ld. atpage 12. ltshould be recalled that the actual evidence

presented at trial was that the rape was ongoing when the friend

arrived at the residence. RP page 258. In fact, it was a phone call

and her arrivalthat caused the Appellant to stop sexually assaulting

the victim. ld. The uncontested testimony presented at triatwas that

the victim walked outof the bedroom, wrapped only in a blanket, to let

her friend in. U. The victim testified that because her friend was

pregnant and so she feared for her safety, she considered closing the

door in her friend's face to protect her from the Appellant's violence.

RP page 259. When her friend entered the residence the Appellant

was in a very emotionally disturbed state and that as soon as he left

their immediate company (he went into the kitchen and retrieved a

large knife) the victim whispered to her friend that the Appellant had

raped her. RP pages 260 - 261. This is hardly the situation where a

victim has "time to reflect" and to create a statement in their "self-

interest." Moreover, the "hearsay" statement made to the friend was

allowed into evidence AFTER the victim herself had described making

the statement during her direct testimony. (RP pages 258 - 261:

victim's testimony regard i ng the "whispered " statement, RP pages 3 1 8
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- 319: the friend's confirmation that the victim "whispered" to her that

she had been raped.)

There is absolutely no indication that this statement was

anything but an excited utterance made immediately after the rape

and whib the UnlaMul lmprisonment was still ongoing. The Court did

not err in permitting this testimony.

As for the statement the victim made to the police officer at the

hospital, the record is clear that sufficient foundation for an "excited

utterance" was laid prior to its admission. The officer testified that

when he first saw the victim at the hospital she was in a very stressed

condition:

When I walked into the room she was sitting in a chair
close to one of the side walls inside the door and was
rocking back and forth. She was, you could definitely tell
that she was excited or upset about something that had,
that had previously happened.

PR page 220. Contrary to the Appellant's assertion in his brief, the

Trial Court Judge did not ask questions of the officer because of

foundational issues (Brief of Appellant, at page 13). Rather the

Judge's questions were solely directed to the length of the

conversation between the officer and victim. RP page 226. Having

been satisfied by the foundation laid by the State the Judge ruled:

| find that certainly the first few minutes of the officer's
colloquy with the, Ms. Harris, clearly her comments
clearly fall under the excited utterance exception to the
hearsay rule.

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT 13



RP page 226. As the Judge explained in detail:

The first few minutes of the colloquy I will allow as
exited utterance, again basing the decision on the fact
that she is still crying, she's visibly upset, she is excited,
she's rocking back and forth, she is notwellcomposed,
she's got her head down, she's slumped over, she's
looking at the ground, all of these things combine to me
to show that she definitely is still under an excited
utterance type state or a state such as would authorize
an excited utterance. So forthe firstfew minutes of that
conversation, I will allow her responses in under the
excited utterance.

RP pages 228 - 229. However, erring on the side of caution, the

Judge ruled that as the officer continued to question the victim about

the Rape the situation changed to a more investigatory stance and so

would not be allowed. RP page 228. This limitation clearly was

sufficient protection under the rule.

Interestingly it must be noted that the victim told both the nurse

and the doctor at the hospital that she was raped by the Appellant.

(Nurse: RP page 336; Doctor: RP page 460). These statements were

contemporaneous with her statements to the officer and were allowed

into evidence without objection, under the "medical diagnosis or

treatment" exception to the hearsay rule in ER 803(aX4). The

admission of these statements was never challenged at trial and is

not challenged on appeal. lt seems incongruous that the admission

of part of one statement deprived the Appellant a fair trial, but the

admission of two statements made to medical providers, at the same
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time, and the same setting, are unquestioned. lf there is any error, it

must surely be harmless.

The Appellant's citation to State v. Brown, (127 Wn.2d 749,

758, 903 P.2d 459 (1995)) for the proposition that a Trial Court should

not be afforded any deference on the issue of an excited utterance

(Brief of Appellant, page 12) is not an accurate statement of the law.

The law is well-settled that a Trial Court's decisions to "admit or

exclude evidence are entitled to great deference and will be

overturned only for manifest abuse of discretion." State v. Pavlik 165

Wn.App. 645, 650-651, 268 P.3d 986, 989 (Div. ll l, 2011). This

deference includes decisions to admit statements under the "excited

utterance" exception to the hearsay rule. May v. Wright, 62 Wn.2d

69, 73, 381 P.2d 601, 604 (1963). Although Brown was cited by this

Court in a decision which cast some doubt on this rule (State v.

Sharp, 80 Wn.App.457,460, 909 P.2d 1333 (Div. ll l, 1996)), this

interpretation has been fairly consistently distinguished, questioned,

or disagreed with by other Courts. Just four years after the decision

in State v. Sharpe, Division Three recognized the criticism of its

holding therein and in its interpretation of Brown for a legal basis for

the decision. State v. Williamson, 100 Wn.App.248,996 P.2d 1097

(Div. lll, 2000). The Williamson Courtwent on to overrule Shape and

hold that in deciding to admit a statement as an excited utterance the
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Trial Court is in a far better position than is the Appellate Court to

assess "all the other intangibles that go into the evaluation which

cannot be reflected on a written record, the trialjudge is entitled to

absolute deference." Wlllroso_n at 257 .

One final point on this particular issue, this case cannot be

"boiled down to a he said-she said" as the Appellant concludes. Brief

of Appellant, page 14. The State's case was supported by physical

evidence, the victim's testimony, admissions made by the Appellant

himself to severalwitnesses and even posted on the internet, medical

evidence, circumstantialevidence including evidence of flight, and the

Appellant's blatantly contradictory trial testimony in the light of his

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